SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 12, 2008
9:13 a.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:13:09 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
A LSO PRESENT

Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget;
Rachel Pet r o, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of
Adm nistration; Arnold Liebelt, Facility Chief, Departnent
of Health and Social Services; Steve MConb, Acting
Director, Division of Juvenile Justice, Departnent of Health
and Social Services; Leta Sinons, Director, Division of
Support Services, Departnment of Natural Resources; Jeff
Hoover, Deputy Director, Adm nistrative Services, Departnent
of Fish and Gane; John Hilsinger Director, Division of
Commercial Fisheries, Departnent of Fish & Gane; Doug
Lar son, Director, Division of Wldlife Conservation,
Departnment of Fish & Ganme; Charles Swanson, Southeast
Regi onal Supervisor, Division of Sport Fish, Departnment of
Fish & Gane

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUMVARY

SB 221 "An Act making appropriations, including capital
appropriations, supplenental appropriations, and
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing
for an effective date."
SB 221 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

9:13:14 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 1 03/12/08 9:13 A M



SENATE BILL NO. 221

"An Act making appropriations, including capital
appropri ations, suppl enent al appropri ations, and
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

9:14:51 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested that all agencies prioritize
their FY 09 requests. He noted that the conmttee would
start with information regarding the request of $42 nillion
for information technology projects (IT) contained in the
budget using FY 08 revenue. He indicated there was a good
chance that the comnmttee would alter that request to FY 09.

9:16:40 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked the Administration to talk about how
they planned to deal with IT challenges the state faces over
the next several years and discuss the interrelationships
bet ween the vari ous departnents.

9:18:18 AM

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
presented the IT projects funding proposed with the FY 08
surplus. Ms. Rehfeld indicated that the budget was presented
i n Decenber and included proposed expenditures for FY 08 and
FY 09 with the supplenental itens and the proposed specia
savings plan. The FY 08 use of surplus was for 32 projects
with $29 mllion in general funds (GF) and $5 mllion GF
proposed for the capitalization of the [ISF fund. She
expl ai ned that the proposal is to use $34 nmillion out of the
FY 08 surplus in the appropriation bill introduced in a
separate section with an effective date for June 30, 2008 so
that it wuld be <clear it wuld be a surplus not
suppl enental request. She indicated that there was $2.7
mllion in federal nmoney with $5.2 million of other funds
equaling the $42 million on the spending plan.

Ms. Rehfeld also indicated there were IT projects included
in the FY 09 request for 27 projects in the regular portion
of the budget; $24 mllion in total with $2 mllion G- and
$7.7 mllion in federal funds and $14.3 nmillion of other
funds. She enphasized that technology is a significant
conponent of agency operations and their ability to deliver
efficient services to Al askans. Ms. Rehfeld noted areas of
concern in updating the technology wth sone system
repl acenent over the next several years. M. Rehfeld
stressed that the Departnent of Admi nistration had worked
hard to get the statewide IT planning process in place and
continued to nmake inprovenents in that area.

Senat e Finance Committee 2 03/12/08 9:13 A M



9:22:18 AM

RACHEL PETRO, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTIVENT CF
ADM NI STRATI ON, indicated that all requests in the FY 08 and
FY 09 budgets were reviewed as part of the FY 09 IT pl anning
process. M. Petro provided a brief history of how
i nprovenents have been nmade, beginning in 2002, when the
state comm ssioned the initial study to develop a statew de
information technology plan, often referred to as the PT

pl an, after the conpany that had been given the contract. In
2003, the Information Technology Goup (ITG wthin the
Departnment of Admnistration was asked to develop an
enterprise inplenentation strategy building on the 2002
plan. She reported that in August 2003, another contractor
was hired to develop an actual enterprise or corporation
wide IT integration plan. Ms. Petro indicated that this set
in nmotion a departnmental IT planning process, established
the enterprise |IT governance nodel, set up the |IT budget
pl anni ng process and al so changed the name of the ITGto the
Enterpri se Technol ogy Services Division (ETS).

Ms. Rehfeld pointed out that since 2003 the state used this
basic governance nodel presented in the plan: SOA |IT
Governance Structure, Prepared by DOA ETS, March 11, 2008
(copy on file). Ms Petro explained that the process begins
with each individual departnment submtting their IT plans
for the year, which are reviewed by the Technol ogy
Managenment Council made up of a representation of al
departnments. She signified that there is a technical
and enterprise mssion review for efficiency, accessibility,
and security.

9: 25: 45 AM

Ms. Petro stated that the Enterprise Review Teamreviews the
technol ogy, policy and overall investnment aspects before
going to the Enterprise Investnment Board. The board consists
of the Ofice of the Governor, Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget t he Conmi ssi oner of t he Depar t ment of
Adm nistration, the Director of the Enterprise Technol ogy
services, and a representative of the Admnistrative
Services Director’s team M. Petro concluded that the fina
step in the process goes from the Enterprise Investnent
Board, with recommendations from the ERT, to the EIB who
makes recommendations to approve or not approve projects.
Finally it noves to OVB where there is a list of approved
projects neeting state standards to create nore efficiency
within state governnment to deliver the best services for the
| east amount of noney. M. Petro disclosed that these
approved projects can then be inserted into different
depart nent budgets. Ms. Petro stressed that IT projects not
approved by the EIB are not considered for the budget. M

Senat e Finance Committee 3 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Petro enphasized that the process is evolving to better
align the planning process with the budget process.

9:27:49 AM

Ms. Petro responded to Co-chair Stedman’s request on the
rel ati onship between Enterprise Technology Services and
different agencies, IT divisions and groups. She noted that
basically the relationship was that of custoner and service
deliverer. She explained that any centralized |IT service,
such as the Mcrosoft Qutlook and enail and cal endaring, and
are worked with in the departnents. M. Petro stated that
there are business needs driven by agency m ssions often not
suited to the centralized nodel. The overall picture is to
i nprove central services to reduce support costs.

9:29: 26 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman requested a summary sheet for all the
projects. M. Rehfeld indicated that it is possible to
obtain one consolidated list for FY 08 and FY 09.

Senat or Huggi ns questioned if the Alaska Land Mbbile Radio
system (ALMR) went through this process. M. Rehfeld stated
that it did not as it was a separate capital project.
Senator Huggins wondered if there was a simlar mnagenent
technique. Ms. Rehfeld indicated that ALMR did not have this
sane structure

9:30:49 AM

Co-Chair Stednman requested from Ms. Rehfeld an el aboration
in the decision to use FY 08, not FY 09, noney.

Ms. Rehfeld commented that there was a delay in the fina
review process with the EIB that had to do with rel easing
t he budget requests early for the FY 09 budget process. It
was hoped that the projects <could be included for
consideration as a request for the FY 08 surplus.

Co- Chair Stedman understood that there was a four percent
target for FY 09 and asked for an el aboration since he was
aware that four percent had its limtations.

9:32:47 AM

Ms. Rehfeld agreed that they were |looking for a four to four
and a half percent change from FY 08 to FY 09. She
acknow edged that after putting out the Decenber budget it
was based on the anticipated additional expenditures in FY
08, including supplenentals that are now before the
committee. She stated that when |ooking at the overal

operating and capitol budget in Decenber there was a target

Senat e Finance Committee 4 03/12/08 9:13 A M



of $4.4 billion in FY 09. She infornmed the committee that
there will be another forecast that will [ook different from
Decenber.

Co- Chair Stednman appl auded the goal to keep within the four
per cent t ar get range. He considered that both the
Adm nistrative and Legislative branches need to work
together to reach these goals. He enphasized that the
concern of the conmttee is that there is now a twelve to
fourteen percent range, but there is a need to nove bel ow
the ten percent range to the possible four percent nentioned
earlier.

Co-Chair Stednman explained that the conmttee believed it
was a difficult goal to neet sone of the governor’s budget
requests.

9:35:18 AM

Ms. Rehfeld signified that the Admnistration would work
with the Legislature to neet this overall goal

Co- Chair Stedman noted that the commttee intended to use FY
09 revenue when the capital budget was put together so there
will be sone shifting of itens.

Senator Elton contended that the chart indicated there were
many people and large overhead involved in rmaking
recommendati ons on technol ogy services. He wondered how many
hours were involved with the high level policy nakers.
Senator Elton also noted nany service providers were
represented on the chart, but there were no represented
reci pients. He questioned how the service receiver’s needs
are incorporated.

9:37: 00 AM

Ms. Petro commented that the Enterprise Investnent Board
invests about four to six hours a year and the Enterprise
Revi ew Team spends double or triple that tinme going through
the detailed projects from a policy perspective to provide
final recommendations for the EIB. Ms. Petro noted that the
Technol ogy Council neets regularly every other week and the
Ad Hoc neets as needed. She enphasized that the departnents
focus on the issue full time. She could not answer how the
custoners are incorporated into the process, but believed
the feedback from custonmers was supplied from various
departnments and divisions. Ms Petro reported that nost of
the tinme there is no direct feedback unless sonething fails.

9:39:16 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman inquired about the cost savings to the
state once everything has been inplenented. He wondered t hat

Senat e Finance Committee 5 03/12/08 9:13 A M



with a nore streamlined process if this would translate
i nto personnel savings.

Ms. Petro remarked that one of the recognized challenges is
how I T projects can save the state noney, but unfortunately
there was little data on this subject. She reveal ed that
part of revising the plan and starting a project managenent
office within the Enterprise Technology division was to
bring nore firm nunbers on the saving investnent. Ms. Petro
hoped to have this data next year when neeting with the
commttee. She suggested that as the IT division grows there
will be a greater need for nore IT people, but |ess need for
ot her types of individuals.

9:41: 54 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman commented that the problem policy makers
have in trying to keep costs under control is the difficulty
in maki ng decisions wthout having all the information. He
enphasi zed that decisions are often made on faith and hope,
but the commttee needs sone assurances that this is not
expanding governnment, or if it is, what wll be the
benefits.

Ms. Petro replied that one exanple was proper software
bl ocks pop-ups on inappropriate websites, which in turn
keeps bandw dth costs down.

9:43: 58 AM

Co- Chair Stedman wondered if enployees would be | ooking at
i nappropriate websites if the software was not in place.

Ms. Petro noted that pop-up ads appear on all forns of
websites, including news and information sites.

9:44: 52 AM

Senator Elton asked if the structure to review the
technology would also deal with the difficultly in
attracting IT personnel needed to maintain and run the
syst ens.

Ms. Petro acknow edged that it is not part of the fornal
process, but part of the larger recruitnment retention issue
the departnent is studying. She reported that although there
is no formal process, there is a process in the Enterprise
Technology Division to inventory existing staff to best
utilize their talents and cross-train those already in
pl ace.

9:46: 21 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 6 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Senator Elton questioned if the noney was used to get this
technol ogy woul d there be people available to make it work,
since he has heard it is difficult to recruit |IT personnel.

9:47: 07 AM

Ms. Petro responded that ETS and the Adm nistration are very
aware that to make the project successful requests are kept
realistic. She pointed out that often contractors are
utilized to carry out |arger projects.

9:48: 31 AM

Co- Chair Stednman asked about the $2 mllion in network
security and $2.7 million in facility renmediation. Ms. Petro
noted that repairs were needed to the facilities renediation
in the two major data centers in Anchorage and Juneau.

Co-chair Stedman requested an email with a flow chart that
could be posted on the Finance Commttee website. Ms. Petro
agreed and said it would also be posted on the ETS website.

AT EASE: 9:49: 36 AM
RECONVENED: 9: 50: 42 AM

Co-Chair Stedman reconvened stating that they were going to
take a breather on IT to get the report and have the
departnment return at a later tine.

9:51:46 AM

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

ARNCLD LIEBELT, FACILITY CH EF, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, provided a Power Poi nt presentation entitled
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) FY 09
Capi tal Budget Request (copy on file). M. Liebelt reviewd
the mssion of DHSS to pronote and protect the health and
wel | being of Alaskans. He enphasized that great effort to
support this mssion is used in putting together the budget
for capital projects.

M. Liebelt started with the MLaughlin Youth Center
Renovation to Meet Safety and Security Needs, reference
number 41336 at $19,503,700, (General Funds) (P. 2). He
informed that commttee that an Anchorage design consultant
was hired to investigate and anal yze the safety and security
deficiencies in the four oldest youth facilities throughout
the state; the Bethel Youth Facility, the Fairbanks Youth
Facility, the Johnston Youth Center and the MLaughlin Youth
Center. The Departnent plan spans a six-year period to find
t he nost responsible and financial way to address the severe
deficiencies existing in these facilities. The nunber one
priority out of that study is Phase 1 for the MLaughlin

Senat e Finance Committee 7 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Youth Center. He laid out the four phases (p.3) to address
the safety and security issues. He pointed out that nunber
three (orange) is a new twenty-five bed detention wunit
replacing the ol dest detention unit in the state. He noted
that to construct the new detention facility on that site,
it will have to take over the existing outdoor recreation
site which will then be relocated on area marked nunber one.
The area marked nunber four would be screened for visua
bl ockage of the street because a forced evacuati on does not
allow for any security and the young residents would have
access to Providence Drive, shown at the top of the photo.
M. Liebelt revealed that new parking would take place in
the area marked nunber two. He expl ai ned that changi ng areas
during renovations results in a domno effect noving the
young people to various buildings. The overall sunmary for
the next six years is to be found on page four.

9:57:15 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman questioned if it was better to centralize
youth facilities or expand regional facilities. Co-chair
Hof f man believed it was better at the regional rather than
state |evel but requested advice from the experts on the
best net hod.

STEVE MCCOMB, ACTI NG DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF JUVEN LE JUSTI CE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, indicated that the
goal and long range plans would be for expanded renovated
facilities at the regional level but the imedi ate need was
to provide safety and security for the residents. He
stressed that to neet the departnment mssion, updated
facilities and good security supervision is of the highest
concern.

10: 01: 51 AM

Senator Thomas inquired if statistics are kept in the
facilities on recidivism M . McComb commented that
statistics are kept. He indicated that recidivism is at
thirty five percent, par for the national average. He
reported that the residents are kept busy throughout the
day; if they are on the treatnent side, they are allowed to
work at sites within the comunity.

10: 04: 01 AM

Senator Elton noted that the $20 million for the MLaughlin
projects seened primarily for construction of the Juvenile
Justice Center (p. 4). Senator Elton noted that the center
woul d be occupi ed by progranms in conjunction with non-profit
agencies, such as the Boys and Grls Cdub, the Anchorage
School District and others. He wondered if a fee would be
charged to these groups for use of the facilities.

Senat e Finance Committee 8 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. MConb replied that if the center is able to supervise
t he young people in the community and provide a facility for
school and other treatnment, then they could |live at hone
creating a cost savings to the state.

10: 06: 15 AM

Senator Elton asked why it is the state’s responsibility to
build a new honme at MLaughlin for the ancillary prograns
when other communities have such prograns but there are no
plans to build a facility for them

10: 07: 36 AM

M. MConb replied that Anchorage is only one that has this
type of community retention program He acknow edged t hat
other statewide facilities work with clubs and organi zati ons
outside the facility but with the volunme of young people in
Anchorage it is beneficial to bring these prograns inside
t he facility, ot herw se t he necessity to provi de
transportation to these prograns would be difficult and
costly.

Senator Elton remarked that the Boys and Grls Cub in
Juneau provides the transportation need so he is not
entirely convinced that a new honme at $20 mllion is
required in Anchorage for these prograns.

Co- Chair Stedman declared that the departnent should work on
getting support for their program

AT EASE: 10: 08: 54 AM
RECONVENED: 10: 09: 29 AM
10:10: 15 AM

M. Liebelt continued his presentation with the Sitka
Pioneer Hone Roof Replacenent, project nunber 45177,
$1, 900, 000 (General Fund) (p. 5). M. Liebelt commented that
the Sitka Pioneer Home, constructed in 1933, is the ol dest
facility cared for by the DHSS. Mst of the roof systemis
original and needs to be replaced. M. Liebelt remarked that
an issue affecting the roof is that it is unique historica

building with a Terra Cotta tile roof. At present there are
about forty-one | eaks and dangerous working conditions.

Co-Chair Stedman commented that the building is old but well
built.

Senator Thomas questioned if the continued use of Terra
Cotta tiles was because of the building’s historic
designation. He remarked that there are netal or other
materials that look like tiles which mght be a better |ong
run solution. M. Liebelt stressed that as a historic

Senat e Finance Committee 9 03/12/08 9:13 A M



facility it was necessary to be conscious of the |[|ong
process to change this type of roof system but he believed
that the Terra Cotta tiles were a prudent systemin the |ong
run.

10: 13: 23 AM

M. Liebelt continued wth the A aska DHSS Deferred
Mai nt enance Renovation, Repair and Equi pnent, project nunber
45641, for $7,191,600. He recounted a change in the fund
source from the Al aska Student Loan Corporation to the
Al aska Capital Investnment Fund, with a small anmount of
federal funding. M. Liebelt referred to the list of twenty-
one facilities maintained by the departnment in need of
i medi ate and critical renewal, repair, replacenent and the
acqui sition of new equi pnent (p.6).

Co-Chair Stedman wondered if the list was prioritized and
the departnent’s plan to deal with potential overrun. M.
Liebelt remarked that the ||ist reflects the highest
prioritized listing.

Co-chair Stedman specul ated that if a | esser anpbunt of noney
was allocated would there be a prioritized list on what
would be the top projects. M. Liebelt remarked that if a
| esser anpbunt was allocated then the departnent would
prioritize those projects along the highest needs. Co-Chair
Stedman requested that a conplete prioritized list be
presented to the committee

10: 16: 24 AM

Senator Dyson inquired about the criteria used in nmaking
deci sions on what projects to do when there is not enough
noney to do everything on the list. Senator Dyson suggested
that the Finance Conmttee draft anmendnents requiring
prioritized lists from departnents to be presented wth
budget requests. He stressed that this would make it easier
for the commttee to make evaluations when it is necessary
to pick and choose from projects.

10: 18: 09 AM

Co-Chair Stedrman agreed that the commttee would like to
work with the prioritized list but reiterated that the
commttee has the discretion to nake decisions outside the
list.

M. Leibelt indicated that there are prioritized lists
within the budget requests for each one of the buildings.
This allows the departnent to use the noney for the highest
need of the building or facility.

10: 19: 49 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 10 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Liebelt referred to the Non-Pioneer Home Deferred
Mai nt enance, Renovation, Repair and Equipnment, reference
nunber 31862, for $757,600 (p.7). This request would fund
additional high priority projects.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if this list was also prioritized.
M. Leibelt declared that they were but would be at a | ower
priority then those |isted on page 6.

Co-Chair Stedman requested that a dollar value be attached
to the six facility requests on page 6.

10: 22: 00 AM

M. Liebelt continued with the Federally Mandated Child and
Fami |y Services Review, project nunber 45404, for $200, 000
($151.7 CGeneral Fund; $48.3 in matchi ng Federal Receipts).

LAURA BAKER, ACTING DI RECTOR, FINANCE AND ACCOUNTABI LITY
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES, noted that this
federally mandated child and fam |y services review project
was put in the capital bill. She indicated that this is a
one-tinme project to address the outcones of the federal
review and inplenment the program inprovenent plan for the
Ofice of Children's Services. She signified the inportance
of having these funds available for the inplenmentation
process that may go beyond the end of the June 30" fiscal
year .

10: 23: 56 AM

M. Liebelt continued with the the Safety and Support
Equi prent for Probation Oficers, Social Wrkers and Pioneer
Home Residents and Staff, project nunmber 32446, for $837, 800
($399.7 GCeneral Fund Match, $350.3 GCeneral Fund, $87.8
Federal) (p.9). He explained that this is a consolidated
one-tinme equipnment request. He pointed out that the nost
significant request of $94,000 for the Al aska Pioneer Hones
is to reduce liabilities and injuries to staff and
residents. M. Liebelt reported that this is a pilot project
at the Pal mer Al aska Veterans and Pioneers Hone.

10: 26: 13 AM

Senat or Huggi ns questioned if the pioneer hone or state is
receiving noney from the veteran’s admnistration, and if
so, he wondered where the noney was going. M. Liebelt was
not sure.

Co- Chai r Stedman requested that the federal noney
information regardi ng veterans be brought to the conmttee.

10: 27: 29 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 11 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Liebelt continued with a detailed |ist of the equipnent
needs for Juvenile Justice and the Ofice of Children
Services, (p. 9). M. Liebelt then noved to the Information
Services Security Enhancenents, project nunber 35721 for
$1, 000, 000( Federal Receipts) (p. 10)followed by the Craig
Public Health Center Replacenent, project nunber 45182, for
$797,900 (General Fund/ Match) (p.11). He remarked that this
request woul d provide matching funds for the construction of
a new health center in the Cty of Craig. This is a $6.5
mllion project and the amount requested would be the
departnment contribution. He remarked that this project would
bring the health center up to nore nodern nedi cal standards.
M. Liebelt continued with the Enmergency Medical Services
Ambul ances and Equi prent Statewide — Match for Code Bl ue
Project, project nunber 42837, for $425,00 (Ceneral Fund
Match) (p. 12).

10: 31: 04 AM

M. Liebelt reviewed the Mental Health Capital Projects
Essential Program Equipnment, project nunber 33672, for
$250, 000 (General Fund/ Mental Health Trust) (p. 13). He
indicated that this is a previous request to award funds to
non-profit providers for services to trust beneficiaries
t hroughout the state. He indicated that this was a popul ar
program awar ded on a statew de conpetitive basis. M. Leblet
moved on to the next project, Ment al Health Hone
Modi fication and Upgrades to Retain Housing, project nunber
33671 for $500, 000 ($250,000 General Fund, $250,000 MHTAAR)
(p. 14). This is a grant program providing funding for
i nprovenent in private honmes to maintain a nore independent
lifestyle. M. Liebelt asserted that these awards are
[imted to individual honmes at about $12,000. M. Liebelt
noved to the next project, Mental Health Treatnents and
Recovery Based Special Needs Housing, project nunber 37901,
for $750,000 (%$250,000 General Fund, ($250,000 AHFC Recei pts
and $250,000 MHTAAR) (p. 15). He acknow edged that this is
also a conpetitive statewi de program providing funds for
agencies to develop transitional housing units supporting
recovery sustainability for a high risk, severally inpaired
or the chronically alcoholic to remain in the client’s
community of origin or nearby hub which he believed
was critical to the recovery process.

10: 33: 06 AM

M. Liebelt listed the five IT projects starting with the
Electronic Vital Record Registration System reference
nunber 42853, for $3,724,500 (General Fund) (p. 16). He
expl ained that the twenty year old system runs on the DOS
format. M. Lieblet listed sonme of the benefits derived from
a new system

Senat e Finance Committee 12 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Senator Elton questioned if this went through the process.
M. Liebelt replied that it did.

Senator Elton questioned why IT is devel oping software at
t he cost of $2,530,000 when there nust be avail able software
al ready witten.

PH LLIP M TCHELL, SECTION CHI EF, VI TAL STATISTICS, DI VISION
OF PUBLIC HEALTH, remarked that each state has its own
requirenents and laws for vital record systens. He pointed
out that any existing software purchased would have to be
revised and nodified to reflect current state | aws which can
be a tinme consum ng process.

Co-Chair Stedman questioned if these requests were the
| owest priority for the departnent since they were |listed on
t he bottom

M. Liebelt indicated that the departnment would like to
reexamne the priority |ist.

10: 36: 12 AM

M. Liebelt continued wth the Evaluate Eligibility
I nformati on System Alternative — Phase Two, project nunber
42854, for $864,300 ($84,900 Ceneral Fund, $389, 700 Cener al
Fund Match, $389, 700 Federal) (p. 17). He remarked that this
system needs to investigate alternatives for replacing the
existing EIS system since total replacenent is very costly.
He reviewed the three alternatives; adding functionality to
an existing system |ooking at another state’'s system with
the possibility of transferring and nodifying that system

or devel oping a custom repl acenent system from scratch. M.
Li ebelt indicated that over $172 million in PA paynents are
issued using this system to determine eligibility serving
over 67,000 individuals nonthly. M. Liebelt noved to
Eligibility Information System Mintenance, project nunber
42856 for $427,800 (%$159,100 GCeneral Fund WMatch, $105, 300
General Fund, $163,400 Federal) (p. 18). He explained that
this is tied to the previous request as this existing system
needs to remain operational until a new system is online

whi ch coul d be anywhere fromeight to ten years. M. Liebelt
described the Fraud Case Mnagenent System Replacenent,
project nunber 42858, for $298,200 ($110,900 Ceneral Fund
Mat ch, $73,400 General Fund, $113,900 Federal) (p.19). He
declared the existing system outdated, unstable and
inmpossible for nmultiple users. He enphasized that the
exi sting system contained over twenty years of fraud case
history. He reported that it would also be a web based
system whi ch does not exist now.

10: 40: 30 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 13 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Liebelt concluded with the Emergency Medical Services —

Emer gency  Conmmuni cati ons, reference nunber 33443 for
$265,000 (CGeneral Fund) (p. 20). He signified that this
project will protect the health and safety of Al askans by

mai ntai ning and updating the | egacy Enmergency Comrunication
Systens. He noted that these systens are wused in rural
Al aska by energency nedi cal responders where the Al aska Land
Mobil e Radio (ALMR) is not available. M. Liebelt explained
this request will update the Statewi de EMS Commruni cations
plan, fund the conpletion of the highest priority repair and
conpl etion projects, and assess the repair/replacenent needs
of existing VHF/ HB base station/repeater network that
support two way conmunications with hospitals, health care
provi ders, and | aw enforcenent agenci es.

10: 41: 28 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman requested the process that will be used to
inre-prioritize these itens.

M. Liebelt responded that there would be several criteria
including alternate funding sources, delaying certain
projects, and a thorough | ook at which conponents are nost
vital .

10: 42: 43 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested the re-prioritized list be sent
to the commttee.

Senator Elton wondered in reference to the Enmergency Medi cal
Services, (p. 20) if this was an indication that the
departnment had given up on the exiting system

M. Liebelt replied that the ALMR system does not work
st at ewi de.

Senator Elton questioned if there will then be two systens,
the | egacy system and the ALMR system

M. Liebelt acknow edged there woul d be two systens.

10:45:11 AM

LETA SI MONS, DI RECTOR, DVISION OF SUPPORT SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, listed the four itens of IT
FY 09 capital projects to utilize FY 08 funding.

Project # 41410

Al aska Land Mbil e Radi o, Phase Two

$450, 000

Ms. Sinons reported that this project funds the Division of
Forestry’'s mgration to FCC mandated narrow banding by

Senat e Finance Committee 14 03/12/08 9:13 A M



January 1, 2013 and Alaska Land Mbile Radio (ALM)
standards. Ms. Sinons noted that over a three-year period
this would cost over $1, 000, 000.

Project # 38872
Unified Permit Project, Conpletion of Phase 4
$800, 000

Ms. Sinons explained that the project provides applicants
and state enployees with an automated system to process
docunents in state land and water resources, including
| eases, water rights, burn permts, land title transfers,
etc.

Project # 45269
DNR Docunent Managenent System
$1, 200, 000 ( General Fund)

Ms. Sinons remarked that this project automates DNR paper
case files by converting themto digital format via scanning
based upon state standards. The DNR has over 100,000 active
cases related to land use authorizations and property
rights.

Project # 45270
DNR I nformati on Technol ogy Infrastructure Upgrades
$276, 000 (CGeneral Fund)

Ms. Sinons asserted that it is vital to upgrade the IT
infrastructure to effectively and efficiently admnister its
charter wunder the Alaska Constitution and the slkate’'s
\natural resource nmanagenent.

Co-Chair Stedman requested an integration of the last four
itens in the overall list.

AT EASE: 10:48: 09 AM
RECONVENED: 1:41: 41 PM

DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME

JEFF HOOVER, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME presented an overview of the
twenty three projects.

Co-Chair Stedman asked that the request be ranked in
priority order.

M. Hoover replied that the requests are listed in priority
order in the governor’s bill. There are no IT projects
funded wth the FY 08 noney.

Project # 43322

St at ew de Mai nt enance Repair

Senat e Finance Committee 15 03/12/08 9:13 A M



$1, 000, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover reported that this request provides for the
repair, maintenance and renovation of departnent statew de
facilities, vessel/aircraft repair, and the purchase of
field equipnment. This is a four-part ongoi ng annual request
for statew de deferred maintenance facilities in over forty
| ocations statew de, vessel maintenance for the departnent’s
five vessels, aircraft maintenance for eleven aircraft and
field equipnment and nmaintenance for regional wldlife
bi ol ogi st s.

Project # 45363
Power Backup for Genetics Laboratory
$100, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover noted this one-tinme project covers the purchase
and installation of an appropriately-sized generator to
power all ultra-cold freezers in case of an el ectrical power
outage at the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane offices in
Anchorage. These freezers contain over 450,000 specinens at
an investnent of over $3, 000, 000.

Project # 45368

Assessment of Pacific Salnbn Resources in AYK, Northern
Regi on

$150, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover noted this study evaluates the distribution and
abundance of Pacific salnon in Arctic freshwaters north and
east of Point Hope, Alaska. Prior studies, conpleted in the
m d- 80s, need to be updat ed.

Project # 42948

Fai rbanks Regional Ofice Enclosed Secure Storage Conpound
Desi gn/ Constructi on

$2, 000, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover explained that this project was for the design
and construction of a new storage facility and a secure
out side storage area. He noted several thefts over the years
have pushed risk nmanagenment not to insure the contents in
and around that |ocation. The proposal is for a new secure
facility of 10,000 sg. ft. of internal storage and 25, 000
sq. ft. of secure outside storage for departnenta
equi pnment .

Project # 45381

Subsi stence Technical and Scientific Reporting Integration
i nto Departnent Database

$127, 400 General Fund

Senat e Finance Committee 16 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Hoover indicated that this would provide subsistence
information in text-searchabl e databases for easy access by
the public. The currrent database is not easy to access.

Senator Elton asked if a record is maintained on how many
hits the website receives.

M. Hoover did not have that information but would direct it
to the commttee.

Project # 45369
Kodi ak Aircraft Hangar Upgrade
$225, 000

M. Hoover declared this a one tinme project to construct a
hanger to house the four departnment owned aircraft; the
present facility can only house one aircraft.

Project # 42981
Kodi ak Near Island Facility
$2, 000, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover noted that they are working with the Kodiak
| sl and borough to build and construct a research facility on
Near Island. The current building is a state owned crowded
buil ding located in downtown Kodiak. He explained that the
departnment would like to add an adjacent research office
next to the existing building occupied by NOAA and the
Uni versity of Al aska.

Project # 44823
Lower Kasil of Boat Launch
$2, 000, 000 (Ceneral Fund $1, 250, 000; Federal $750, 000)

M. Hoover explained that this project would be phased in
over two years with first the purchase of the land from a
private |andowner then the design and construction of the
boat | aunch.

1:54: 52 PM

Co-Chair Stedman asked if there had been a commerci al
apprai sal of land. M. Hoover said he would report back to
the commttee on that issue.

Project # 44833
Kanal ku Lake — Angoon Fi sh | adder
$200, 000 General Fund

M. Hoover explained this request was for the planning,
construction, and evaluation of a sockeye salnon fish pass
consisting of eleven junp pools and a flow diverter near the
outl ets of Kanal ku Lake and the community of Angoon.

Senat e Finance Committee 17 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked if there had been an inpact on
fishing as a result of the recent escapenents.

M. Hoover replied that efforts have been nmade to inprove
the situation

JOHN HI LLSI NGER, DI RECTOR OF COWWERCI AL FI SHERI ES, remarked
that the sockeye run had been down in recent years conpared
to its historic output. He explained that over the | ast
couple of years less than thirty percent of the fish had
been able make it above the falls. The |adder would allow
fish to nore easily make it up the falls to the | ake where
t hey woul d be protected.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if there is additional funding in the
suppl enental bill to address this sanme issue. M. Hoover
replied that he was not aware of any additional funding.

Senator Huggins interjected that he has been supportive of
addi tional construction of fish |ladders but wanted nore
i nformati on about beaver dam renoval .

1: 59: 31 PM

Senator Elton questioned if the falls were on forest service
land and, if so, he wondered if they were participating
financially.

M. Hilsinger said that the forest service is supportive and
will participate in the design phase.

Senator Elton asked if the construction costs would be
handl ed by the state.

M. Hlsinger replied that the state would pay for the
construction.

2: 00: 22 PM

Project # 33647
Paci fic Coastal Sal non Recovery Fund
$22, 000, 000 Feder al

M. Hoover cited that this was the ninth year for receiving
these federal funds. In prior years the noney cane to the
governor’s office then was sent to Fish and Gane but in FY
09 the departnent is asking for the federal funds directly.
Co- Chair Stedman asked why.

M.  Hoover bel i eved it woul d relieve unnecessary
adm ni strative steps.

Senat e Finance Committee 18 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Co-Chair Hof fman considered this not the only adm nistrative
change on how dollars were spent, particularly in western
Al aska, so he intended to check with the conm ssioner to
keep the traditional funding in western Al aska.

Co- Chair Stedman requested a report on the changes.

M. Hoover replied that there was a report that could be
given to the commttee in response to the senator’s request.
In prior years there were lots of earmarks attached but in
FY 08 and FY 09 the programis now a conpetitive proposal
M. Hoover added that there is now information on the Fish
and Ganme website on how to apply for the funding.

2: 02: 56 PM

Co-Chair Hoffman felt the specific earmarks should follow
the original intent of the appropriation.

M. Hoover responded that he would follow up and provide
addi tional information.

Project # 45358
Li censing Point of Sale System
$200, 000 Fi sh and Gane funds

M. Hoover related that this would be a one tinme project to
purchase equi pnent for approximately forty sale term nals.
He noted there are sixteen hundred termnals statewide with
thirty-five selling about one-half of the licenses. Co-Chair
Stedman requested a list of the vendors.

Senator Elton said he would like to know what inpact this
woul d have on vendors. He wondered if this would require
additional training for the vendors and retire maintenance
of el ectroni c nmachi nes.

M. Hoover explained that the plan was to elimnate sone of
t he paperwork burden on vendors. He agreed there would be
new equi pnent and training over the next few years.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if this cost covers the entire
program

M. Hoover replied that this funding just provided for
equi pnent purchase in forty |ocations.

Project # 45374
Crew Menber Fishing Participation Database
$150, 000 Fi sh and Gane funds

M. Hoover explained that funds would be used for the

devel opmrent of an electronic system for collecting,
mai nt ai ni ng, and reporting on the commercial fishing

Senat e Finance Committee 19 03/12/08 9:13 A M



activities of 27,000 crew nmenbers participating in Al aska's
commerci al fisheries.

Project # 31317
Juneau Hunter Education Indoor Shooting Range
$338, 000 ($150,000 Fish and Gane; $188, 000)

M. Hoover noted this wll allow the conpletion of the
Juneau Hunter Education Public Shooting Range that was
constructed in 2004.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if this itemwas vetoed | ast year.

Senator Elton replied that it was vetoed |ast year but he
did not remenber the noney anount. He added that if the
building is conpleted a fish and gane staff nenber would no
| onger need to be present.

DOUG LARSON, DI RECTOR COF DI VI SION OF W LDLI FE CONSERVATI ON
responded it would not mtigate the need to have fish and
gane staff on site but the rational is to get nore users
into the facility. He enphasized that the archery side would
become conpletely separate from the gun range therefore a
range safety officer would be required on the rifle side but
vol unteers could man the archery side.

2:09: 19 PM

Co-Chair Hoffman remarked that there is no funding on the
senate side in the operating budget for added fish and gane
positions.

Senat or Huggi ns announced that there were no facilities in
his district and requested the fish and ganme phil osophy on
where they are | ocated.

M. Larson responded that facilities are very expensive
whi ch precludes building in other areas and that avail able
funds have not been present. He recounted the present
| ocations were in Juneau, Fairbanks and Anchorage. He
pointed out that the philosophy behind the ranges is for
proper training and hunter information.

2:12: 39 PM

Co-Chair Hoffrman noted that people in western Alaska rely
heavily on rifles for subsistence and that all the ranges
there are self-sufficient.

Co-Chair Stedman added that sonme ranges in Southeast are
private or run by a municipality. He further commented on
the previous veto and wondered what assurances there were
t hat the governor will not veto this again.

Senat e Finance Committee 20 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Hoover remarked that the original request was for
General Funds but now the funding source is Fish and Gane
and Statutory Receipts. He signified that this is the
governor’s project so did not believe there was any intent
to veto it.

2:14: 23 PM

Senator Elton confirmed that |ast year the project was for
General Fund noney but now the funding source is different.

Co-Chair Stednman agreed the facilities are beneficial to
comunities but the issue is what is being done with the
itens.

2:15: 59 PM

Senator Thomas inforned the conmittee that several ranges
have closed due to lead contam nation. He asked if federa
funds are used to support ranges and that facility closes,
woul d the state have to pay back the funds. He al so wondered
what it mght take to make the ranges self-sufficient.

M. Larsen reported that when federal funds were
appropriated to the state and the facility closes or changes
to private hands then the funds would be paid back to the
f ederal government.

Co-Chair Stedman believed there was a tine frame on the
af orenentioned limtations.

2:18: 32 PM

Co- Chair Hof f man questi oned whether the state can afford to
mai ntain and operate the facilities. He noted l|ast year a
letter of intent stated that the departnent needs to find
alternate revenues to operate these facilities and the
committee is still waiting for that report.

M. Larson clarified that the requested anount is the sane
as last year. He added that there are a nunber of vol unteer
and private organizations willing to make up the difference
to maintain the facilities. He added that nore users would
bring in nore revenue.

Co-Chair Stednman wondered why Juneau is considered core
state service and not Ketchi kan or Sitka.

2:21:43 PM

M. Larson explained that the definition of a core state
service needs to be identified.

Senat e Finance Committee 21 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Senator Elton commented that historically this project cane
on line years ago when there was a pool of noney to build a
facility. This facility was not just paid for by the state
but the city of Juneau contributed significantly on access,
water, and utilities.

Co-Chair Stedman said there is a |lot of support for shooting
ranges but it is a matter of equity in distributing funds
He suggested the Conm ssioner cone to the conmttee for a
di scussi on of these issues.

2:24: 22 PM

Proj ect #45220
Birch Lake Weir Site Land Acquisition
$200, 000 ($150, 000 Federal Receipts, $50,000 Fish and Gane)

M. Hoover commented that this funding is a one tine project
to appraise and purchase land for the Birch Lake weir. He
reported that the property is now owned by the Mental Health
Trust and these funds woul d purchase the | and fromthem

Project # 45215
Whittier Harbor Transi ent Morage — Boating Infrastructure.
$1, 500, 000 (Federal Recei pts)

M. Hoover comented that this project wll provide
transient noorage for large (over 26 feet) recreational
boats. He indicated that the non-federal match ($2,129, 800)
woul d be provided by the City of Wiittier.

2:25: 53 PM

Co-Chair Stedman mentioned the Harbor Capital request lists
and wondered why the Wiittier harbor was not on the capital
request I|ist.

CHARLES SWANSON, SOUTHEAST REG ONAL SUPERVI SOR, DI VI SION OF
SPORT FI SH, DEPARTMENT OF FI SH & GAME, believed the federa

appropriation is fromthe BI G federal appropriation which is
a boating infrastructure grant which is separate from the
boat er access noney.

Project # 30432
Sport fish Recreational Boating Access
$3, 100, 000 (%2, 325,000 Federal; $775,000 Fish and Gane)

M. Hoover remarked that this is an annual request
authorizing the Division of Sport Fish to continue to
construct and upgrade boating and sport fish access
facilities statewde from funds conprised of seventy-five
percent federal assistance and twenty five percent Fish and
Ganme Fund state match

Senat e Finance Committee 22 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked if the proposed projects were
avai | abl e.

2:28: 20 PM

M. Swanson indicated there were fourteen projects across
the state and he would submt the list to the committee.

Co-Chair Stednman declared the interest anbng conmttee
menbers for boat ranp access and inprovenents but requested
a priority list with an explanation on how they were
prioritized. He also requested a |ist of those projects that
did not make the priority list.

Senator Elton asked why the | ower Kasiloff River boat |aunch
was not a part of this request.

2:30: 16 PM

M. Swanson reported that the first phase for |ower Kasiloff
is for land acquisition but after that, the noney requested
woul d be part of the normal process.

Senator Elton asked if federal dollars can be used to
pur chase | and.

M. Swanson believed federal noney could be used for |and
pur chase but was not sure for a fact.

2:31: 44 PM

Co- Chair Stedman asked if Stargaven in was on the list since
he was disappointed it was vetoed |ast year. He supported
devel opi ng boat ranps around Al aska, but was concerned about
the equity issue.

Senat or Huggi ns acknow edged he would Iike to see the tine-
line for projects and the variables in determning
priorities.

M. Swanson remarked he had the information on hand.

Co-Chair Stedman said he would like the information for
di ssenm nation to the commttee.

2:34: 18 PM

Co-Chair Hoffrman said he would like to see the last three
years of expenditures to determ ne what projects have been
f unded.

Co-Chair Stedman noted the inportance of ranking projects.

2: 35: 23 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 23 03/12/08 9:13 A M



Project # 45482
Statewi de Facility Deferred Mintenance Bondi ng Projects
$1, 900, 000

M. Hoover recounted the change by anmendment in the funding
source from the Alaska Student Loan Corporation Bond
Receipts to Al aska Capital Inconme Fund Receipts. He listed
the four projects in the appropriation; The Tok Conpound
Repl acenent s, the Emmonak Bunkhouse Repl acenent, t he
Statewide Facility Roofing and Siding Replacenent, and the
Statewide Field Canp Housing Replacenent Projects. He
decl ared many Tok offices in need of upgrade or replacenent
since they fail to neet current building codes or energy
efficiency standards. The Emmonak Bunkhouse, at the nouth of
the Yukon, is a critical nonitoring station for comrercial
fishing that is busiest during the Muy-Septenber period. The
departnment nust secure rental prosperities from |ocal
vendors which are expensive and difficult to obtain. M.
Hoover continued that with over forty facility |ocations
t hroughout the state, roofing and siding replacenent would
be spread over several years, starting with the highest
priority.

2:38:42 PM

M. Hoover continued with the last project for stateside
field canp replacenment projects in nultiple |ocations
t hr oughout the state.

2:39:17 PM

Project # 42983

Language: Sport Fisheries Hatchery Construction Investnent
Ear ni ngs

$6, 000, 000

M. Hoover remarked that this allows the Sports Fisheries
Division to utilize the investnent earnings in the Al aska
Sports Fisheries construction account for hatcheries in
Anchorage and Fairbanks. Investnment earnings have been in
t he account since 2006.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if this request addresses the intent
of the bond issuance within the original bill.

M. Swanson understood this to be correct.
Co-Chair Stedman suggested that this be researched and
confirmed that it aligns wth the original intent. He
further requested information on where the funds would be
appropriated, specifically to hatcheries.

2:41:45 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 24 03/12/08 9:13 A M



M. Swanson said he would research the |anguage regarding
the bond and interest earnings. He understood that the funds
fromthe earnings would be used for construction.

Project #
Installation of Capstone Avionics for WIldlife Conservation
Aircraft

M. Hoover reported this wuld be a one tinme project
covering seven aircraft within wildlife conservation. The
departnment would work with the FAA who is providing ground
stations and equi pnent to nmake project functional.

2:43: 53 PM

Co-Chair Stedman reiterated that what had been presented was
the priority list and asked that further information be
provided on the boat ranp, shooting ranges and fish
hat cheri es.

AT EASE: 2:44:58 PM
RECONVENED: 2:45: 07 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:45 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 25 03/12/08 9:13 A M



